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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Sorry for the

          3  delay, but we had a budget negotiating session going

          4  on dealing with the remaining issues in the budget,

          5  which we are hoping to resolve shortly.

          6                 My name is David Weprin.  I am Chair

          7  of the Finance Committee.  To my immediate left is

          8  Council Member John Liu from Flushing, who has been

          9  a strong advocate of the Flushing BID, and as soon

         10  as I finish talking I am going to call on the

         11  Councilman to make a statement, if he choses.

         12                 A number of the Finance Committee

         13  members will be joining us shortly as budget

         14  negotiating is concluding right now.

         15                 We are holding our opening hearing on

         16  Intro 509, the local law that would establish a new

         17  downtown Flushing BID in Queens.  On June 12 this

         18  Committee adopted the resolution setting today for

         19  the date to hear all those interested in the

         20  establishment of the BID.

         21                 At that time, City Planning had

         22  recommended that the district plan be amended to

         23  include an additional property that wants to be

         24  included in the BID.

         25                 They drafted amended pages to the
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          2  district plan, which they provided to us and have

          3  been made part of our packets, and the packet that

          4  has been on file in the City Clerk's office.  So the

          5  plan we will be considering includes the proposed

          6  amendment.

          7                 After we hear from all the witnesses,

          8  we will adjourn the hearing for at least thirty

          9  days, which is the statutorily mandated time during

         10  which property owners objecting to the establishment

         11  of a BID may file formal objections.

         12                 In the absence of significant

         13  objections, if the Committee and the Council could

         14  answer the following four questions affirmatively,

         15  it may adopt the local law establishing the BID.

         16                 The four questions that we must be

         17  prepared to answer are:

         18                 1. Were all notices of hearings for

         19  all hearings required to be held published and

         20  mailed as required by law and otherwise sufficient?

         21                 2. Does all the real property within

         22  the district boundaries benefit from the

         23  establishment of the district except as otherwise

         24  provided by law?

         25                 3. Is all real property benefitting
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          2  by the district included within the district?

          3                 4. Is the establishment of the

          4  district in the best interest of the public?

          5                 If the Committee finds in the

          6  affirmative on these four questions, and the number

          7  of objections required to prevent the creation of

          8  the BID are not filed, then the legislation could be

          9  adopted.

         10                 Following our hearing on the BID, the

         11  Committee will consider one preconsidered Land Use

         12  for partial tax exemption for two single-family

         13  homes for low-income families built through the

         14  Habitat for Humanity Program.

         15                 This project was approved by the

         16  Council in 1999,and the prior Administration

         17  inadvertently failed to request the tax exemption.

         18                 A number of my colleagues have joined

         19  me, we have Council Member Mike Nelson, who is Chair

         20  of a Subcommittee of this Committee on Revenue

         21  Forecasting, we have from Brooklyn.  We have Council

         22  Member Madeline Provenzano coming in from the Bronx.

         23  To my immediate right is Jim Caras, Counsel to the

         24  Finance Committee.  We have Council Member Allan

         25  Jennings from Queens, and Council Member Gale Brewer
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          2  from Manhattan.

          3                 Council Member Liu, did you have a

          4  statement?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  And we have our

          7  Majority Leader Joel Rivera from the Bronx.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you,

          9  Chairman Weprin.  And I want to commend you for

         10  holding this hearing.  We are here to hear testimony

         11  from a number of witnesses, possibly for, possibly

         12  against the creation of a Business Improvement

         13  District in Downtown Flushing, and this is a plan

         14  that has been thought out very carefully by a

         15  Steering Committee that was convened last October.

         16                 The outreach in the property owners'

         17  community, as well as the business tenants and the

         18  residential community, has been full and thorough.

         19                 I want to state that this, the

         20  creation of this business district in Flushing, will

         21  help us raise Flushing to new heights and help

         22  unlock the potential that the town clearly has.

         23                 The next steps will include another

         24  full, thorough outreach to all parties interested,

         25  and I have stated in the past that I believe we have
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          2  an overwhelming level of support from the property

          3  owners.  The Community Board in Flushing unanimously

          4  passed this proposal on April 14th.  The City

          5  Planning Commission unanimously passed this as well

          6  on May 21st.  If, for some reason, there is a

          7  majority of property owners, those who are

          8  responsible for paying the cost of this Business

          9  Improvement District, if for some reason a majority

         10  of property owners actually does not want to create

         11  this Business Improvement District, then I would

         12  urge my colleagues here to turn down this proposal

         13  for the Business Improvement District, otherwise if

         14  it is shown that there is a great deal of support

         15  for this Business Improvement District then I would

         16  urge Chairman Weprin and this Committee to pass this

         17  proposal as quickly as can be.  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you Council

         19  Member Liu. We've also been joined by Council Member

         20  Bill DeBlasio from Brooklyn, and our Deputy Majority

         21  Leader Bill Perkins from Manhattan.  Welcome.

         22                 The first witness is Assemblyman

         23  Barry Grodenchik from Queens from the Flushing area,

         24  and I want to say that he was almost a colleague of

         25  ours having run for City Council, but he decided
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          2  that he liked the weather in Albany better than the

          3  weather down here so but he's the Assemblyman is a

          4  very hard working individual.  I know him for a

          5  number of years and has a long history in

          6  involvement.  He was worked for former Governor

          7  Cuomo as a Community Liasion.  He worked in the

          8  Borough President's Office as a top aide under both

          9  Claire Shulman and Helen Marshall and certainly is

         10  an outstanding leader in Queens County, and I know

         11  his feelings on this issue are very important to

         12  this body and to the community in general.  With

         13  that, Assemblyman Grodenchik.

         14                 ASSEMBLYMAN GRODENCHIK: I hope that

         15  introduction doesn't come out of my speaking time.

         16  Thank you David and thank you all you members here,

         17  my friends, my colleagues in government. I'm here,

         18  I'm a son of Flushing, a child of Flushing. I grew

         19  up in Flushing. I went to public schools in Flushing

         20  and I'm here first of all to say that I

         21  wholeheartedly support the BID.  I have been working

         22  with John, your Councilman, your colleague.  Marilyn

         23  Biderman from the Board.  Gene Kelty from the

         24  Community board. Toby Ann Stavisky our State Senator

         25  to do whatever we can to push this bid forward.
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          2  Flushing, right now, the state of the streets is

          3  nothing short of a public health menace.  You walk

          4  down the streets of Flushing on any given day,

          5  especially on a day like today when it's in the mid-

          6  nineties, the stench can be overwhelming, the

          7  garbage is flowing, and that's not to say that the

          8  people who clean the streets professionally, the

          9  Department of Sanitation, the Department of

         10  Transportation aren't doing their jobs.  They are

         11  doing their jobs but the amount of people in such a

         12  small area, it's just overwhelming.  We have ten

         13  thousand people an hour passing through Main Street

         14  and Roosevelt Avenue.  Many of you who visited

         15  Flushing know that's our version of Times Square and

         16  it's just overwhelming.  Through the Councilman's

         17  assistance, we're able to provide DOE fund workers

         18  who have been doing an outstanding job but even they

         19  are overwhelmed, we really need a professional, well

         20  run Business Improvement District in Flushing.  I am

         21  quite surprised really, trying to be objective, that

         22  there isn't one in existence already.  We have them

         23  throughout the City of New York. They work very

         24  well.  This is really, when you boil it down, a very

         25  modest effort.  The budget is just a little over
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          2  $300 thousand a year, and really what we want to do

          3  is clean up the streets and I believe that the

          4  merchants and the landlords who are going to foot

          5  the bill for this BID are going to be the ones who

          6  get the most out of it.  Many people tell me, many

          7  of my constituents, who have lived in the Flushing

          8  community for half a century or more tell me they do

          9  not shop at all in Flushing, and I'm quite surprised

         10  by this but then they tell me why and it's because

         11  they just can't take the stench, they can't take the

         12  filthy streets and they shop elsewhere.  So the City

         13  is losing tax revenue because of this. It's losing

         14  jobs and it's something that will be a tremendous,

         15  tremendous improvement, and I want to thank

         16  everybody from the community who came down today.  I

         17  believe that most of the people that speak on this

         18  issue will be speaking in favor of it.  I give it my

         19  unqualified support, and I really implore you all of

         20  the members of this Committee and all the members of

         21  the City Council, and our Mayor hopefully will sign

         22  this bill once you pass it, and I look forward to

         23  being there at some kind of ribbon cutting with you

         24  all.

         25                 Are there any questions otherwise I
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          2  will head back to Flushing?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We've been joined

          4  by a number of colleagues since our last

          5  introduction.  In the back we have Council Member

          6  Robert Jackson from Manhattan.  On the left we have

          7  Council Member Christine Quinn from Manhattan, and

          8  on the right, hey that's good, on the right we have

          9  Council Member Simcha Felder from Brooklyn.  Any

         10  questions for the Assemblyman?  I introduced Council

         11  Member DeBlasio already, but thanks for asking.

         12                 ASSEMBLYMAN GRODENCHIK:  Is that it?

         13                 CHAIRMAN WEPRIN: Assemblyman, you're

         14  excused.

         15                 ASSEMBLYMAN GRODENCHIK: Thank you

         16  very much Councilman, thank you all.  Have a good

         17  day.

         18                 CHAIRMAN WEPRIN:  The next witness

         19  will be George Glatter from the New York City

         20  Department of Small Business Services.  Testifying

         21  in favor of the BID.

         22                 MR. GLATTER: Good morning, Chairman

         23  Weprin, members of the Finance Committee.  My name

         24  is George Glatter.  I'm Executive Director of the

         25  Neighborhood Development Division at the Department
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          2  of Small Business Services.  SBS supports the

          3  establishment of the downtown Flushing Transit Hub

          4  Business Improvement District in the Borough of

          5  Queens, believing the existence of a Flushing BID

          6  will result in attracting more businesses to

          7  downtown Flushing; making Flushing a shopping

          8  destination of choice for residents, workers and

          9  visitors.  The BID will also provide a clean and

         10  safe environment that businesses can prosper within.

         11    The BID program is an important economic priority

         12  of the City.

         13                 Geographically the proposed district

         14  includes properties along Main Street, on both sides

         15  of the street from Northern Boulevard to Sanford

         16  Avenue and both sides of Roosevelt Avenue between

         17  Union and Prince Streets.  It also includes both

         18  sides of 40th Road from Main to Prince Streets, both

         19  sides of 39th Avenue from Main Street to College

         20  Point Boulevard, Casino Boulevard from Main Street

         21  to Barkley Avenue, and the north side of Casino

         22  Boulevard between Barkley Avenue and Sanford Avenue.

         23                 Services to be provided in the

         24  District include but are not limited to:

         25  Sanitation, holiday lighting, administration,
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          2  marketing and promotion of the District, and

          3  additional services that may be required for the

          4  enjoyment and protection of the public and the

          5  promotion and enhancement of the District.  The

          6  annual budget for the District's first year of

          7  operation is $380 thousand.             As required

          8  by the BID law, the Downtown Flushing Transit Hub

          9  BID Steering Committee mailed the summary of the

         10  City Council resolution to each owner of real

         11  property within the proposed district at the address

         12  shown on the latest City assessment roll, or to such

         13  other persons as are registered with the City to

         14  receive tax bills concerning real property within

         15  the district, and to tenants of each building within

         16  the proposed district.  In addition, SBS arranged

         17  for the required publication of a copy of the

         18  summary of the resolution in the City Record.

         19  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Mr. Glatter,

         21  when was the publication and the mailing of the

         22  notices done?

         23                 MR. GLATTER:  June the 13th.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you.

         25  We've been joined by Council Member Helen Sears from
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          2  Queens.  Do any of my colleagues have any questions?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: I have some

          4  questions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, Council

          6  Member Jennings.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Good

          8  morning, how are you doing?

          9                 MR. GLATTER:  Good morning, okay, how

         10  are you Council member.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Let me just

         12  ask you, going through the process, Mr. Glatter, can

         13  you explain to the Committee how many people need to

         14  sign on to become a BID?  What is the requirement of

         15  property owners?  How many do you have to have to

         16  create a BID?

         17                 MR. GLATTER: Okay, the creation of a

         18  BID is governed by state law, and the way the state

         19  law reads, 51 percent of the property owners have to

         20  object to the formation of the BID formally through

         21  the City Clerk in order for the BID not to be

         22  approved through the property owners.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Mr.

         24  Glatter, I know we've had several meetings putting

         25  together BIDS in the past, right? You and I in my
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          2  office.  And it was my understanding that you needed

          3  50, at least 51 percent of the property owners.

          4  According to Commissioner Wall's statements, to

          5  create a BID you have to get 51 percent of the

          6  signatures on those original applications; isn't

          7  that true?

          8                 MR. GLATTER: What we look for is we

          9  look --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  But I just

         11  want to know, could you answer me yes or no?  Is

         12  that true or not true?  Do you have to go out and

         13  get 51 percent of property owners to sign onto the

         14  BID, at least 51 percent first before you could

         15  create the BID?

         16                 MR. GLATTER: Not under the law.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: You don't

         18  have to.  So then you tell me how many signatures do

         19  you require from property owners to begin the

         20  process of creating the BID?

         21                 MR. GLATTER: We will not take it into

         22  the formal approval process until we are convinced

         23  that a majority of the property owners - -

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: What is the

         25  legal number of property owners needed to sign these
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          2  documents in order to create a BID?

          3                 MR. GLATTER: As I said, under the

          4  law, in order to create a BID, 51 percent of the

          5  property owners can object it and prevent it from

          6  being created.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: I understand

          8  that.  What is the clear number to create a BID?

          9  That's what I want to hear.

         10                 MR. GLATTER: Well, I'm saying, if

         11  more, if, if 51 percent --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Does it take

         13  10 percent of property owners in the community to

         14  say, well, on a given street, say, well, we want to

         15  have a BID, and does 10 percent of the people sign a

         16  paper and turn it in and say, well, we want to

         17  create a BID?  Is that all you need?

         18                 MR. GLATTER: That is not what DBS or

         19  SBS would be satisfied with.  SBS wants to see --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: What is the

         21  percentage of numbers that DBS would be, Department

         22  of Business Services would be satisfied with in

         23  order to create the process of a BID?  What is the

         24  percentage number?

         25                 MR. GLATTER: Before we take it into
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          2  the formal approval process, we want to be sure that

          3  a majority of the property owners are in favor of

          4  creation of a BID.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: You said

          6  that before, a majority, but what is the number?

          7  What is the percentage?

          8                 MR. GLATTER: Well, the majority would

          9  mean more than half.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: More than

         11  half, so you mean more than 50 percent?

         12                 MR. GLATTER: Yes.  One thing I think

         13  I should say is--

         14                 CHAIRMAN WEPRIN: Excuse me, could I

         15  just interrupt for a second?

         16                 We have one item we're going to vote

         17  on.  We're not going to vote on the Flushing BID but

         18  we are going to vote on the Preconsidered Land Use

         19  item for the partial tax exemption for two single

         20  family homes for low-income families through the

         21  Habitat for Humanity program, which is in Council

         22  Member Jennings district.

         23                 Council Member Perkins would like to

         24  vote because he has an emergency meeting to go to,

         25  and would like to go on the record on voting on that
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          2  item.  So could we call the roll on that item for

          3  Council Member Perkins?

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

          6  very much, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 This is an outstanding project and I

          8  vote aye.

          9                 CHAIRMAN WEPRIN: Thank you.

         10                 I'm sorry, continue.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chairman.

         13                 These questions I'm asking are very

         14  important, and I really think for all the members of

         15  the Council and for the public, this needs to be

         16  very clear in terms of the process.

         17                 Now, you just stated that you wanted

         18  a majority, you're looking for a majority.  Now, you

         19  said a majority is more than 50 percent; is that

         20  correct?

         21                 MR. GLATTER: Right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: So you're

         23  looking for more than 50 percent of people or

         24  property owners in any given BID, anywhere to sign

         25  on, to sign the application.  There is an
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          2  application, right, that you pass out to property

          3  owners; is that what you're saying?

          4                 MR. GLATTER: You see, we don't simply

          5  say to a sponsor, yes, you're interested in creating

          6  a BID, go out and do it.  SBS has a project person

          7  involved from day one with every group that wants to

          8  create a BID.  We make sure that we have seen

          9  expressions of support from a majority of the

         10  property owners before we will go into a formal

         11  approval process.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: And a

         13  majority of the property owners, as you just stated,

         14  you said is more than 50 percent?

         15                 MR. GLATTER: Have expressed support

         16  for creation of a BID, yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: And how do

         18  they express that support?  By filling out, by

         19  signing onto a document saying that they would like

         20  to support the BID; is that correct?

         21                 MR. GLATTER: We have, we have most of

         22  them signed onto a document.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Do you have

         24  more - -

         25                 MR. GLATTER: We are also involved
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          2  directly, that's what I'm saying to you.  We have

          3  spoken with property owners. We have spoken with the

          4  Steering Committee.  We are completely involved in

          5  the creation of every BID.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: What is the

          7  percentage of property owners in this BID that

          8  actually signed on and signed their names saying

          9  that they want to be part of this BID?

         10                 MR. GLATTER: I will have to get back

         11  to you with those numbers.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: You are

         13  going to get back to us today, before we vote?

         14                 MR. GLATTER: Again, you're not voting

         15  today.

         16                 CHAIRMAN WEPRIN: We're not voting on

         17  the Flushing BID today.  It's a 30-day waiting

         18  period before we can vote.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Okay.

         20                 MR. GLATTER: And again the legal

         21  requirements.  This is where we are now.  We're

         22  looking to see that that is not the case, that's 51

         23  percent of the property owners are going to express

         24  their desire not to form a BID.  That's where we are

         25  right now.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: On any given

          3  miles of property, whether it be this BID or any BID

          4  created anywhere in New York City, there are

          5  property owners that may not necessarily live in the

          6  State of New York or live in New York City who may

          7  not necessarily respond to your applications one way

          8  or the other; is that correct?  I mean, they won't

          9  respond saying they want to sign on, and they don't

         10  want to sign on.  You don't usually get signatures

         11  either way, you usually get a signature saying, I

         12  want to be on, and so isn't it assumed that those

         13  who don't sign on in the first place, or didn't sign

         14  anything, doesn't really want to be a part of it?

         15                 MR. GLATTER: No, I think that one of

         16  the things that you'd know from our association in

         17  working originally on the Suffern BID is that we

         18  want to make sure that there is real outreach, that

         19  everybody, every property owner within that district

         20  knows that there's a group that's interested in

         21  forming a BID.  We want to make sure that it's been

         22  in all the local newspapers.  We want to make sure

         23  that there are public meetings. We want to make sure

         24  that there are mailings.  We want to make sure that

         25  no one can come in here to this Council and say, I
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          2  didn't have an opportunity to express my opinion

          3  about the creation of this BID.  And I think that

          4  you have to agree that this is taking place.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: I'm glad

          6  that you brought up the Suffern BID and the process

          7  that took place because when we got together a few

          8  months ago, we met every week in that process.  It

          9  was at the insistence of our Department of Business

         10  Services that you had to go out and get at least 51

         11  percent of the signatures first before you could

         12  even start to even begin that process; is that

         13  correct?  Is that the conversation that we had?

         14                 MR. GLATTER: What we were talking

         15  about was the formal approval process that we've had

         16  to show.  We had to be convinced that the majority

         17  of property owners within that area, within the

         18  boundaries, wanted to be part of the BID, and if it

         19  was not the case, either the boundaries had to

         20  change or the BID would not go through.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: And to be

         22  convinced you needed to have the signatures of the

         23  property owners, not the tenants but the property

         24  owners, 51 percent of the property owners to be

         25  convinced that you had a majority, is that not
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          2  correct?

          3                 MR. GLATTER: We had to, as you know I

          4  was there, we have another project person there, so

          5  we had to be convinced that the expressions of

          6  support for the creation of this BID existed on the

          7  part of the property owners.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: And by

          9  collecting 51 percent of applications signed saying

         10  that we want to be part of the BID.

         11                 MR. GLATTER: Both, both--

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: At least 51

         13  percent, is that correct?

         14                 MR. GLATTER: Both in terms of having

         15  sign off on the part of the property owners, or the

         16  expression that was made to us, or to the Steering

         17  Committee represented to us that we could go back

         18  and check to make sure that these property owners,

         19  in fact, were fully informed about the BID and they

         20  wanted to participate in the BID.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Right, so

         22  therefore you needed 51 percent of people signing on

         23  to that application.

         24                 MR. GLATTER: Again, we needed 51

         25  percent of the property owners to express their
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          2  interests in being part of the BID.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Fifty- one

          4  percent expressed their interest in being part of

          5  the BID.

          6                 MR. GLATTER: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Fifty-one

          8  percent and if the way they expressed their interest

          9  by signing on to the application.

         10                 MR. GLATTER: Or that we can go back

         11  and make sure that in fact this property owner wants

         12  to be part of the BID.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, I'm just

         14  going to interrupt one minute, Council member.  I'm

         15  just going to interrupt for a minute because we have

         16  a quorum and we're going to lose our quorum and I'd

         17  like to call for a vote on Intro 05092003, which is

         18  a local law to amend, I'm sorry, Preconsidered Land

         19  Use item - Habitat for Humanity program 159-04 110

         20  Avenue, and 159-06 110th Avenue in Queens in

         21  Community District 12.  It's a Preconsidered Land

         22  Use item, and I'm going to call for a vote on that

         23  item.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

         25                 CHAIRMAN WEPRIN: Aye.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK FELDER: Aye.

          8                 (Remainder of vote taken off record.)

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of twelve in

         10  the affirmative and zero negative and no

         11  abstentions, the item is adopted.  Council Members,

         12  please sign the Committee report.  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         14                 Continue Council Member.  I'm sorry.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: I'd like to

         16  thank my colleagues for approving that measure in my

         17  district.  Thank you.

         18                 Mr. Glatter, let me ask you about

         19  these applications that were taking place.  Who has

         20  custody of these applications?  The applications

         21  with the signatures of people who want to sign onto

         22  the BID, who has custody of that at this time?

         23                 MR. GLATTER: The individual --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: The

         25  individual applications with the original signatures
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          2  are people, are the property owners who said they

          3  want to be part of this BID, who has custody of

          4  those applications?

          5                 MR. GLATTER: Those are in the

          6  possession of the Steering Committee.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: The

          8  Department of Business Services does not have

          9  possession of these applications?

         10                 MR. GLATTER: We have been to the

         11  Steering Committee. We have reviewed them, but we do

         12  not have possession of them.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: The

         14  Department of Business Services does not have

         15  possession of copies of these, of these

         16  applications?

         17                 MR. GLATTER: We have summaries, but

         18  we actually went out to look at the applications at

         19  the Steering Committee.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: I don't

         21  understand that. Is it a practice of the Department

         22  of Business Services to keep copies or even the

         23  originals of these applications?  Isn't that the

         24  practice of the Department of Business Services?  In

         25  the past with my experience with you, you, in fact,

                                                            28

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  when creating the Suffern BID, you came in and we

          3  gave, you took copies of every single application;

          4  is that not correct?  For the Suffern BID, don't you

          5  have copies of every application?

          6                 MR. GLATTER: I'd have to check but do

          7  know that we had--

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: I believe

          9  you do.  I believe you have copies of every

         10  application, and I believe you have copies of

         11  applications of other BIDS.

         12                 I'm curious, why is it that the

         13  Department of Business Services on an issue this

         14  important, where we are about to tax levy people who

         15  want to volunteer but yet maybe most who have not

         16  volunteered, why that you don't have copies of these

         17  applications in your possession?

         18                 MR. GLATTER: Let me go back again.

         19  We have been out to Flushing many times.  We have

         20  reviewed every single application, so as far as

         21  we're concerned, in fact, those applications are

         22  there.  It is not as if we have not done our due

         23  diligence on this.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: So you're

         25  saying that the group that has the -- you don't have
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          2  a copy of those applications and neither does, you

          3  don't have the originals, the Steering Committee has

          4  it?

          5                 MR. GLATTER: Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: And that you

          7  saw it?

          8                 MR. GLATTER: Right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: You

         10  personally saw all of them?

         11                 MR. GLATTER: I, staff member, the

         12  project manager who has been dealing with the

         13  Flushing BID, did see all of them.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: So aren't

         15  these applications--

         16                 MR. GLATTER: They're not

         17  applications.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: They're

         19  statements written on a document, which says and at

         20  the end of it, I would like to join or I approve I

         21  don't, and there's a signature to it.

         22                 MR. GLATTER: Right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Is that

         24  correct?

         25                 MR. GLATTER: Right.

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: What would

          3  you call that?

          4                 MR. GLATTER: It's really, it's part

          5  of an outreach document that shows that --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: It's a

          7  document that is --

          8                 MR. GLATTER: - - support or

          9  opposition.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:-- support or

         11  opposition. Those are documents that's collected,

         12  that's a form letter that you designed; is that

         13  correct?

         14                 MR. GLATTER: Correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: The

         16  Department of Business Services designed every

         17  single word on those applications, but yet there's

         18  signatures on them and you don't have copies but you

         19  observed it.

         20                 MR. GLATTER: Correct.  We have seen

         21  the --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: These

         23  documents with these signatures on it, are they

         24  available for public scrutiny?

         25                 MR. GLATTER: We can get copies of
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          2  them, yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Anyone in

          4  the public from any opposition member of the BID who

          5  wants to see a copy of those applications, those

          6  documents with those signatures, can observe or even

          7  get copies of it?

          8                 MR. GLATTER: They will get copies of

          9  it.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Well, I

         11  understand and I've gotten so many calls to my

         12  office that maybe you could explain, why is it that

         13  members of the community who has requested it so far

         14  from your office has not received it, and they've

         15  called numerous times.

         16                 MR. GLATTER: I have not received a

         17  request, a request for --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: A request

         19  for copies of the documents with the signatures of

         20  the property owners who have said that they want to

         21  be part of this BID?

         22                 MR. GLATTER: Well, as I said before,

         23  we did not have copies.  We went out. We looked at

         24  the copies, to make sure that the copies were in

         25  fact there, that the originals were there, that they
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          2  were signed off.  I did not have copies, so if

          3  someone asked me for it, I didn't have it.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Okay.

          5                 MR. GLATTER: Nobody asked me for it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: No one asked

          7  you for it. Okay.  So if someone calls your office

          8  now, tomorrow, and says I'd like to have a copy, how

          9  can you furnish those copies to the public when they

         10  call you to ask you for this very, very public

         11  information?  Are you going to be able to get copies

         12  of those applications?

         13                 MR. GLATTER: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Okay.  So,

         15  for example, my office, could you be able to forward

         16  that to this Committee and my office, as well, for

         17  every application with a signature on it?

         18                 MR. GLATTER: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Thank you.

         20                 MR. GLATTER: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I'm now going to

         22  call up, I believe Council Member Liu--  Okay.  I am

         23  going to call up.  Yes. Okay, I believe that Council

         24  Member Gallagher had a quick question. Quick.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: I'll try to
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          2  make it quick, and I just want to ask you a few

          3  questions so it's pretty clear for the record.

          4                 1.   It's my understanding that the

          5  local community board has voted in favor of the

          6  Business Improvement District, is that true?

          7                 MR. GLATTER: Yes. Community Board 7

          8  voted unanimously in favor of the creation of this

          9  BID.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: It's also

         11  my understanding that the City Planning Commission

         12  voted in favor of the creation of the Business

         13  Improvement District for this area?

         14                 MR. GLATTER: Yes, that was also a

         15  unanimous vote.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: And in

         17  excess of 50 percent of the affected property owners

         18  in the community voted or signed a letter or signed

         19  a petition in support of the Business Improvement

         20  District for this location; is that correct, too?

         21                 MR. GLATTER: In excess of 50 percent

         22  have expressed support for the creation of this BID.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: So this is

         24  something that appears to be welcomed by the

         25  community.  The people in the community are looking
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          2  forward to it.  It is something that will enhance

          3  shopping in the Flushing area.  It is something that

          4  we, as legislators, should support in my view so I

          5  want to keep my comments short, because I know I

          6  just listened to my colleague Council Member

          7  Jennings, but I don't know if he heard what I heard

          8  in your testimony.

          9                 But I wanted to make sure that for

         10  the record, and I want to say it once again for the

         11  record, Community Board 7 voted unanimously with not

         12  one person in opposition to the establishment of

         13  this BID?  City Planning Commission voted in favor

         14  of this BID, and a majority of the affected property

         15  owners within this community voted in favor of this

         16  BID?  What's before us today is just a procedure.

         17  This vote will come back to us within 30 days and it

         18  is my understanding that in that time period --

         19                 CHAIRMAN WEPRIN: After 30 days.

         20  After 30 days.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: -- after 30

         22  days, there will be additional public hearings and

         23  more public discussion on this Business Improvement

         24  District; is that correct, as well?

         25                 MR. GLATTER: Yes, if anyone wants to
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          2  come at that next hearing, I guess it's in August.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Yes, well,

          4  thank you.  I just wanted to make sure the record

          5  was quite clear.  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

          7  Sears, did you have a quick question?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes, I do.

          9                 Can you tell many how many blocks are

         10  the boundaries?  Are they 10 blocks, 20 blocks, 8

         11  blocks?  Because I know it's going by names --

         12                 MR. GLATTER: There should be a map in

         13  there, right? It's a lot easier.  It's not as a

         14  linear district, so if you look at the map --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: The reason I

         16  ask that, because I'm looking at the budget and I

         17  question if the budget is substantial enough for the

         18  boundaries of the BID.  Because one of the things,

         19  if a BID doesn't start off with a reasonable budget

         20  for what the initiatives are, it becomes very

         21  difficult to move that along.  Because it's really

         22  admirable that this is starting, really, it's

         23  admirable that it's starting Downtown Flushing.  I

         24  have a BID in Jackson Heights and we border on

         25  Flushing Avenue and many of the people in that area
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          2  shop in Flushing.  This is only going to improve

          3  things.  It doesn't take away the services of the

          4  city.  It actually augments what's to be done and in

          5  a time when it's so difficult.  I know that there

          6  are merchants that sometimes raise a little bit of

          7  fuss because they feel they're going to be assessed

          8  a little more.  But I have to tell you with all due

          9  respect to the merchants, there are obligations to

         10  the communities, and a BID involvement is the least

         11  way that they could go.  The least expensive way

         12  where you equalize what the responsibilities are of

         13  every merchant, and BIDs are to be encouraged for

         14  that reason.  They can't be one that doesn't pay for

         15  this and the others do.  It equalizes the

         16  responsibilities.  But I was just concerned about

         17  the size of the budget.

         18                 MR. GLATTER: Why?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I don't know,

         20  but you would best know if that seems to be

         21  substantial enough.

         22                 MR. GLATTER: The budget was actually,

         23  I guess you should probably wind up speaking with

         24  someone from the Steering Committee, but the Doe

         25  (phonetic) fund has been working in Flushing and I
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          2  believe that the budget is based on the cost that

          3  they have already incurred for the kind of cleaning

          4  that they want to have done.  What we looked at, it

          5  looked like a reasonable number for the size of the

          6  BID.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All right.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Mr.

         10  Chairman, I just want to clear up for the record,

         11  you know, I come before this Committee, the

         12  Department of Business Services came in numerous

         13  times, I supported almost every single BID and I'm

         14  not against BIDs.  I think BIDs is a great idea and

         15  I heard it very clear.  All the different steps that

         16  went through where other people, other entities

         17  supported like the Community Board and the Planning

         18  Commission.  The concern that we have here and the

         19  concern that we have in the Council is legality and

         20  scrutiny when it comes to process.  Process is very

         21  important that when things are, are supposed to be

         22  done in the legal correct way, people don't cheat

         23  and do things that's not proper and if, that's my

         24  concern and the concern of many in the community

         25  that of phone calls and letters and I have gotten
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          2  packages this thick of, of people who are in

          3  opposition.  I'm not sure what the percentage is.  I

          4  don't think it's a 51 percent.  I think so far the

          5  package I have is around 40 or 45 percent of people

          6  who are saying they're against it.  We have not been

          7  able to see those signatures of the people who said

          8  they are for it.  The concern really is about the

          9  process.  You know no matter what we do, we must do

         10  things that are just and that are legal.  That's the

         11  concern that I have.  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, thank you

         13  Council member. Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Mr.

         15  Chairman, just for one second--

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I'd really rather

         17  move on, Council member because we have a--

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Just for

         19  one second, because my colleague had seemed to

         20  indicate that 45 percent are opposed to this, and as

         21  a point of order, I need to know where that

         22  statistic came from or--

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I don't think it

         24  came from anywhere.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Well, then
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          2  if I can't, can I ask the testimony --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We have a number

          4  of other witnesses, Council member, that are going

          5  to be testifying. If he knows, if you know.

          6                 MR. GLATTER: Where that number came

          7  from?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Right.

          9                 MR. GLATTER: I have not seen anything

         10  like that. That has not been shared with us.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Okay, do

         12  you believe that that number is exaggerated way too

         13  high?

         14                 MR. GLATTER: It sounds, it sounds

         15  very high to me but if the Councilman wants to send

         16  us those copies that show what it is, we'll be glad

         17  to look at it.  But again we are now in the formal

         18  objection process. Right now, if 51 percent of the

         19  property owners want to object the formation of this

         20  BID, as Councilman Liu said, we will not support-

         21  that will be the end of it.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Thank you.

         23                 MR. GLATTER: Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I have one

         25  witness scheduled to testify against this BID.  If
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          2  there are any other witnesses, if they could come

          3  forward with this gentleman.  I have Jay Liu.  If

          4  you could come forward, and if there is anyone else

          5  who wants to testify against the proposed BID,

          6  please come up now.  Mr. Liu, do you have a prepared

          7  statement?

          8                 MR. LIU: Yes, I do.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.

         10                 MR. LIU: No, I don't. I'm sorry.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Do you have

         12  copies for us?

         13                 MR. LIU: No, I'm sorry. Just a short

         14  statement.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, go ahead.

         16                 MR. LIU: Good morning, Council

         17  members, my name is Jay Liu.  I'm the owner of a

         18  ninety- nine cent store and a mini- mall in the BID

         19  area for the past fifteen years.  I'm the founder

         20  and co- chair of Flushing Landlord Federation

         21  against the BID.  I represent over 100 landlords

         22  today.  We are against this 3 percent BID tax simply

         23  because of the hard economic times.  With the 18.5

         24  percent real estate tax increase and the 9 percent

         25  assessment increase, and with the customers having
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          2  less to spend due to layoffs, rent increases,

          3  increase in sales tax, transit fares.  We cannot

          4  afford additional 3 percent BID tax. With the

          5  enforcement of current cleaning, littering and

          6  quality of life laws, we can have a cleaner Flushing

          7  without the additional tax.  Over the years, in my

          8  mini- mall, I had a wait list of people wanting

          9  space, and today I have over five vacancies in my

         10  little mall.  In my ninety- nine cent store, I see

         11  the affect of the hard economic times every day. I

         12  see customers talking about prices, and I had to

         13  layoff two of my six employees just recently.  We

         14  are also against this BID because of the methods

         15  being used to force this upon us.  Most people don't

         16  understand that by not receiving or not responding

         17  to the bias petition or not understanding the

         18  English only petition, they are inadvertently

         19  supporting this BID.  Many landlords are intimidated

         20  to not speak out against the BID for the fear of

         21  retribution.  This BID clearly does not have the

         22  support of the majority.  If the burden of proof was

         23  upon the Flushing Steering Committee to gather real

         24  signatures of landlords who support this BID, you

         25  will see the true extent of the lack of support.
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          2                 We ask this Finance Committee to

          3  demand that the Flushing Steering BID Committee

          4  prove the majority support with real signatures, or

          5  have the City Clerk collect supporting petitions

          6  instead of objections for the sake of democracy.  If

          7  the burden of proof is still upon us to show

          8  objections, then we ask this Committee to postpone

          9  this issue until after the summer since most people

         10  are away and to extend the time frame to greater

         11  than thirty days.  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.  Any

         13  questions for Mr. Liu?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Are you

         15  speaking for yourself or are you speaking for many

         16  of your colleagues?

         17                 MR. LIU: I'm speaking for myself and

         18  many of my colleagues.  I have in my hands petitions

         19  that the Small Business Services handed out, and we

         20  have gathered over a hundred signatures against this

         21  BID.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: You know, it's,

         23  I'm very familiar with the process of a BID cause I

         24  was really one of the founders of one.  The process

         25  for the establishment of a BID is a very open
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          2  process and as had been stated earlier, you've got

          3  community boards, you have the City Planning

          4  Commission.  You have community.  Don't lets leave

          5  out the community and when you have these hearings,

          6  the community has to be there.  The merchants have

          7  to be there and the landlords have to be there  So

          8  it isn't something that's done very quietly.  And

          9  what happens, you also get into the inter- agency

         10  part of it.  So there isn't any, I'm confused when I

         11  hear that somehow it hasn't been done in an open

         12  process because the process itself is open.  It's

         13  not really hidden.  There are publications in the

         14  newspaper.  There are certified letters that go out

         15  to the merchants and the landlords, certified.  And

         16  unless, they are returned, those merchants and those

         17  landlords have received them.  To start the BID is

         18  an expensive process just to go through the open

         19  process that there is.  So I'm a little confused

         20  about thinking that this has not been an open

         21  process.  I don't think the BID would have started,

         22  if it hadn't been an open process because the City

         23  agencies are involved.  The Community Boards are

         24  involved and the communities themselves are involved

         25  because it's a requirement that when that board is
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          2  formed of a BID, you do have community people on

          3  that board.  So I just have to make that comment

          4  because I don't know as the process would be so

          5  quiet because just by it's very nature, it's quite

          6  loud.  Thank you Mr. Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

          8  Jennings, for a brief question.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Sir, Mr.

         10  Liu, what is your, which group do you represent?

         11  What's your position?

         12                 MR. LIU: Well, when it first started

         13  out that, when I went to John about this BID --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: What group

         15  do you represent and what's your position?

         16                 MR. LIU: Flushing Landlords Against

         17  the BID.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: And what's

         19  your position with the group?

         20                 MR. LIU: I founded and chair it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Okay.

         22                 MR. LIU: Yes, it started out when I

         23  went to John about my concerns with this BID and he

         24  stated that I was the only one who was against it.

         25  I have hence found out that that's not the case.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Let me ask

          3  you something about the hundred signatures that you

          4  have, you have a hundred signatures on applications

          5  of some property owners who say they are against

          6  this BID?

          7                 MR. LIU: Yes, I do.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: And what is

          9  the percentage of those who compared to the totality

         10  of the property owners of that community?  What is

         11  the percentage of this one hundred?  What does this

         12  one hundred represent?  What percentage does it

         13  represent?

         14                 MR. LIU: Well, according to the

         15  proposal the total is supposed to be two hundred and

         16  ninety five.  We stopped after a hundred, gathering

         17  signature because we felt it was kind of fruitless

         18  and it was falling upon deaf ears.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: I'm asking

         20  you, what percentage does it represent?

         21                 MR. LIU: I would say it's probably

         22  about 40 percent if we were to show you all the

         23  signatures.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: These

         25  hundred signatures represent a 40 percent of
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          2  opposition.

          3                 MR. LIU: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Have you

          5  made any requests to any government entities

          6  regarding seeing copies of the original signatures

          7  from property owners who said they were for the BID?

          8  Have you made that request to anyone?

          9                 MR. LIU: Yes.  I've made the request

         10  from Mayor Bloomberg down to the Department of Small

         11  Business Services and I was not given any response.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: So who did

         13  you call the Department of Business Services to ask

         14  for this?

         15                 MR. LIU: I spoke to Eddie Ng. I

         16  requested from him the actual signatures of the

         17  people supporting it, and I was not--

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: And what did

         19  he tell you?

         20                 MR. LIU: He told me that he didn't

         21  have it in his hands.  That it was not in his hands.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Did he say

         23  he was going to get back to you and give it to you?

         24                 MR. LIU: I believe so and I was never

         25  given any response.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Okay, thank

          3  you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I am going to

          5  call upon Council Member Gallagher for a brief

          6  question, and then Council Member Christine Quinn

          7  wanted to make a statement.  I'm just going to vote

          8  in the other room and I will be right back.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         12  Brewer, would you chair the meeting in my absence?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Mr. Liu,

         14  thank you for your testimony.  I guess I will start

         15  off by asking you how many buildings or property

         16  owners are within the effected BID area.

         17                 MR. LIU: Two hundred and ninety five.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Okay and

         19  how many testified in opposition to a Business

         20  Improvement District at the Community Board?

         21                 MR. LIU: I believe the last count

         22  when we stopped was about one hundred twenty four.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: One hundred

         24  twenty four people came publicly into the community

         25  board public hearing and testified in opposition?
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          2                 MR. LIU: The hundred and twenty four

          3  people signed a petition against the BID--

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: At the

          5  public hearing portion of the Community Board 7, how

          6  many people testified in opposition?

          7                 MR. LIU: From my, what I recall, we

          8  had over one hundred people attend.  Testifying, I

          9  would say, maybe about 10 people testified.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Ten people

         11  testified.  I'd be interested in seeing a copy of

         12  the signatures that you have provided with the

         13  property owners and look, I agree that taxation is,

         14  you can check my record in the City Council it is

         15  not something that's positive, but I think that a

         16  number of people that I have spoken to in regard to

         17  this BID look forward to this BID because of the

         18  enhancements that it provides, and the services that

         19  it provides above and beyond what City services can

         20  provide.  I encourage you to come into my community,

         21  and to come into Woodhaven and go to the Woodhaven

         22  Business Improvement District, and come to the

         23  Ridgewood Business Improvement District and see the

         24  benefits of it.  Many people, few people were in

         25  opposition to the Business Improvement Districts
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          2  there in the beginning, and at the end of the

          3  process were thrilled to death that they were there.

          4  It gave them an economic advantage in terms of

          5  marketing and support.  They have raised a

          6  substantial amount of money.  They keep the

          7  commercial strip revitalized.  It keeps it clean.

          8  It's nice for, they encourage street fairs and

          9  festivals and things to bring people out on the

         10  strip.  So perhaps many of the folks are not aware

         11  of all the benefits of a Business Improvement

         12  District.  As I said, as a Council member who is in

         13  Queens County, I have received nothing, nothing but

         14  favorable requests for my vote and assistance when

         15  it comes to the Flushing BID.  Not one individual

         16  had contacted me, not one, to state that they were

         17  in opposition to this.  The first I'm hearing of

         18  this opposition is today.  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I understand, Mr.

         20  Liu, you have a petition.  If you could present it

         21  to me and I will make sure that the Committee has

         22  it.  Do you have a copy of it?

         23                 MR. LIU: Of all the people who signed

         24  on?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes.
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          2                 MR. LIU: I don't have it with me

          3  today.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: If you could

          5  forward it to me, to my office and for the record

          6  please.

          7                 MR. LIU: No problem.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I am going to

          9  move on to the next series of witnesses.  We have a

         10  whole bunch of witnesses testifying in--

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I have a

         12  question for this witness.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Oh, ok.  Council

         14  Member Quinn has a statement to make or a question.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yeah, I just

         16  have two quick questions and a statement that are

         17  just for clarification.  The 124 people who signed

         18  the petition that Council Member Gallagher and you

         19  discussed, were those 124 people, each one was

         20  actually a property owner or each one might have

         21  been--

         22                 MR. LIU: Each one are properties,

         23  properties.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Of the 124.

         25                 MR. LIU: Right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And of the 10

          3  who testified, they were property owners or just

          4  individuals from the area?

          5                 MR. LIU: They were property owners.

          6  Of the ones that testified in the Community Board

          7  for the BID, very few were property owners.  They

          8  were just mostly residents and community people.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Just a little

         10  bit of a follow up to what Council Member Gallagher

         11  said, I was wondering if you and any of the other

         12  folks who are in opposition or concerned have

         13  reached out to any of the other BIDs in the City.

         14  My district, which is the Village Chelsea, Hell's

         15  Kitchen, Times Square, the Central Business District

         16  has more BIDs in it that probably any other Council

         17  District in the City, and I have to say when I was

         18  first elected, I was actually not all that

         19  positively inclined towards BIDs.  I had some deep

         20  concerns about BIDs and in a number of the issues

         21  around expansion of the BIDs I have certainly heard

         22  the type of concerns that I am sure you and the

         23  folks you are working with are raising.

         24                 What I found since being elected in

         25  1999 and what all of those folks who are opposed as
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          2  we expanded BIDs in my district or created new ones

          3  have all become true believers.  You know I say this

          4  to someone who had deep concerns.  There is a range

          5  of BIDs in my district from the Times Square BID,

          6  which is kind of big and broad to more narrow ones

          7  like the Fashion Center Business Improvement

          8  District, which is very kind of industry focused so

          9  they can take on or the "H" Street BID which is very

         10  focused on an area in Greenwich Village.  They can

         11  take on very different personalities, different

         12  goals, different agendas, depending on the area that

         13  they are designed to support.  So have you, in your

         14  development of your position, spoken to any of the

         15  other BIDs in other parts of the City, or, you know,

         16  to their management, to their Boards and also to

         17  folks who may have been opposed but are now

         18  supportive of them?

         19                 MR. LIU: But what we did was we spoke

         20  to other landlords who had properties in BIDs.

         21  There is Alex Merin, who has properties, five

         22  properties down at Main Street Flushing but they

         23  also have properties in Jamaica, Ridgewood and

         24  Steinway, which all have BIDs and from his

         25  experience, he said it hasn't been very favorable.

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  That every year his BID tax has been going up, and

          3  every year they've been doing less and less for him.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But he's

          5  opposed to this BID? Have you--

          6                 MR. LIU: He's opposed to this BID,

          7  yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So have you

          9  spoken to any folks who are not involved with this

         10  BID.  I guess my point being to try to get a more

         11  detached from this issue, more general perspective

         12  on BIDs because this person obviously has a

         13  particular interest since although he has properties

         14  in other BIDs, has ones in this one as well.

         15                 MR. LIU: I personally have not spoken

         16  to other people from other BIDs.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I mean I would

         18  just, you know, obviously as I said, represent

         19  Queens or the area but really encourage you to do

         20  that.  As I said, I was not sold on BIDs when I was

         21  elected in 1999, and now I can't say enough good

         22  things about the impact that they can have on an

         23  area.  They're very able to tailor to the goals of

         24  the area that step forward to request a BID. It can

         25  seem very problematic at first because of the tax
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          2  issues but what they can do is really, you know,

          3  quite miraculous and I would offer my services of my

          4  office if you want me to set up working with the

          5  Finance Committee, you know, other BID directors to

          6  talk to.   As I said, I have more than any other

          7  Council member and they can be quite a significant

          8  benefit to an area and to the businesses in those

          9  areas.  I have really seen areas completely change,

         10  literally, in the time I have been on the Council

         11  because of the work of the BIDs.

         12                 MR. LIU: I appreciate it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I have seven

         14  witnesses to testify in favor of this.  I am going

         15  to call them.  Thank you, Mr. Liu.

         16                 MR. LIU: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I'm going to call

         18  them as a panel please.  If you could come up when I

         19  call your name.  Wellington Chen, Fred Fu, Stanley

         20  Markowitz, Marilyn Biderman, Louis Chang, Lisa Wang,

         21  and Myra Baird Herce.  Just pull some extra chairs

         22  up.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Mr. Chairman,

         24  may I have leave to vote?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We're not voting.
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          2    We already voted.  Oh, on the land use item, we

          3  voted.  We kept the roll open. Would you like to

          4  vote on the land use item?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I vote aye.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Fidler, aye.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Mr.

          8  Chairman, if you could forgive me and the witnesses,

          9  there's a caucus meeting with the speaker right now

         10  downstairs.  I need to attend that meeting.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Go ahead.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, who wants

         14  to start?  Do you want to draw straws?  Ms.

         15  Biderman?

         16                 MS. BIDERMAN:: Yes, I'll start.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Ok, Marilyn

         18  Biderman.

         19                 MS. BIDERMAN: Good morning,

         20  Councilman Weprin and the rest of the Council.  I'm

         21  very honored to be here speaking in favor of the BID

         22  for Downtown Flushing.  On April 14th, Community

         23  Board 7 held their public hearing which was dually

         24  advertised.  We sent out a mailing of over seven

         25  hundred pieces of mail to notify the community about
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          2  our public hearing.  We had over 40 speakers at the

          3  public hearing.  Three speakers spoke in opposition,

          4  only three, to the BID.  One of them was a tenant

          5  and three were property owners.  At that time the

          6  Board voted unanimously for the BID.

          7                 Many of the complaints that we get in

          8  Downtown Flushing is that Flushing is that a place

          9  of destination.  Flushing is a place for growth.

         10  Flushing is the new Manhattan.  However, people are

         11  not coming into Flushing to shop because of the

         12  filth. People are not coming into Flushing because

         13  they want to see high quality stores.  They don't

         14  want to see ninety- nine cent stores. That is part

         15  of the problem in Downtown Flushing.

         16                 During the process of working on the

         17  Steering Committee, we had designated an area of

         18  Main Street from Northern Boulevard to Sanford

         19  Avenue and Roosevelt Avenue from Union to Prince

         20  Street.  During the process of Councilman Liu

         21  spearheading this project and having several

         22  meetings within the community, several merchants

         23  from other areas, 40th Road, which is all Asian,

         24  wanted to be part of the BID.  Thirty- ninth Avenue

         25  west of Main Street, which is all Asian wanted to be
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          2  part of the BID.  Casino Boulevard which is all

          3  Asian wanted to be part of the BID.  And so they

          4  were added to the initial package that was

          5  presented.

          6                 The night of our public hearing, Muss

          7  Development, who is one of the businesses or

          8  corporations on the fringe of our property came

          9  forward and said, we want to be part of the BID.  We

         10  had businesses that many years ago, were against the

         11  BID, that are now in favor of the BID.  We have

         12  Macy's.  We have the Sheraton Hotel which will be

         13  hit on both sides, on Roosevelt Avenue and Thirty-

         14  ninth Avenue.  We have Warnado.  We have Pecks that

         15  was vehemently opposed to the BID.  This past Friday

         16  night I was at a dinner and I bumped into Bob Morani

         17  who was very excited about Flushing with what's

         18  going on, the potential of the growth and we

         19  discussed the BID.  He was in favor of the BID.  We

         20  are very, very excited.

         21                 One of the last speakers that spoke

         22  at our public hearing was the Sheraton Hotel, and

         23  his comment was, it'll give me great pleasure to

         24  sign the check for $17 thousand.  I wish and hope

         25  that this process will move along smoothly, and that
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          2  the Council will have the wisdom to give the

          3  community of Flushing what it rightfully deserves, a

          4  clean place, a place of destination, and a wonderful

          5  shopping area.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Who wants to go

          8  next?

          9                 MS. BAIRD HERCE: My name is Myra

         10  Baird Herce.  I am the President of the Flushing

         11  Chamber of Commerce and Business Association.  My

         12  association with this BID goes back approximately

         13  15, 16 years ago, when I was the director of the

         14  Development Corporation.  At that time, the town was

         15  simply not ready for a BID.  BIDs were not that

         16  popular and there was a lot of questions. However,

         17  as Marilyn Biderman stated, the very persons that

         18  fought the initial BID are supporting this BID

         19  vociferously.  We have, in addition to the hotel, we

         20  have the former Alexander site.  Macy's is strongly

         21  on board with us.  The Chamber of Commerce building

         22  is on board with us with a lot of tenants.  I think

         23  one of the speakers had mentioned a lot of

         24  businesses in opposition.  I dare say property

         25  owners is a separate category from tenants and that
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          2  is something that must be crystal clear.  Is it a

          3  property owner or is it a tenant?  Are they within

          4  the BID district or not?  It is my understanding

          5  from what I have, the feedback that I have from the

          6  business community that the vast majority of

          7  business people want this BID.  We support the BID.

          8                 I also know how the public feels

          9  about the BID because I have also in the past done

         10  some surveys on BIDs and the people have said they

         11  want a clean Flushing.  They want a Flushing that

         12  they can be proud of.  It is not currently, and

         13  that's why I urge this wonderful body to please

         14  support the Flushing BID.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.  Mr.

         16  Chen.

         17                 MR. CHEN: Thank you Chairman Weprin,

         18  and good morning distinguished Council members.  My

         19  name is Wellington Chen. Is my pleasure here this

         20  morning to testify on behalf of some of the property

         21  owners, and also speaking as an individual that has

         22  been involved in this community for the past 33

         23  years.  I must say this is a process long in the

         24  making.  We have been waiting for this for the last

         25  over 20 years, beyond what Myra just attested to. We
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          2  have been trying to revitalize the Downtown Flushing

          3  area since the mid- seventies when the area went

          4  into a decline.  To simply put, Flushing is a very,

          5  very important town.  Flushing is a strategic town,

          6  it has a lot of assets, it has a lot of history, it

          7  has a lot of culture, it is world renown.  So I ask

          8  dare for your indulgence and your perspective this

          9  morning is to take a broader view.  Think about how

         10  many people around the world already know about

         11  Flushing?  You have had two World Fairs.  You have

         12  the United Nation held it's first General Assembly

         13  meeting there.  The state of Israel was voted in

         14  there.  But Flushing by it's nature because of it's

         15  compactness and it's tightness is a very small

         16  geographic area, and as such it has two distinct

         17  characteristics at this moment.  One is that it's

         18  one of the very few remaining central business

         19  district for northeast Queens.  The second one is

         20  one of the busiest in the mode of transportation hub

         21  in the City.  It has, it's ranked as number 11, the

         22  single busiest subway station outside of Manhattan.

         23  It's busier than 59th Street and Lexington where

         24  Mayor Bloomberg is building his new headquarter

         25  there.  It's busier than Park Place and Chamber
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          2  Street.  It is a very, very vital.

          3                 But because just like a Port

          4  Authority Terminal, it has a lot of people passing

          5  through the area.  So even before the arrival of the

          6  Asians there has been a lot of issue with the

          7  sanitation because trash can, you know, Myra set up

          8  a Director for Downtown Flushing Development

          9  Corporation, beautiful trash cans that have blue

         10  logos and keep Flushing clean, and they were

         11  overflowing with garbage because the amount, the

         12  ongoing as some of the Council members attested to

         13  earlier.  It's an ongoing process so as such when

         14  you have such a giant bus terminal that the whole

         15  downtown is a bus terminal, and with over a hundred

         16  thousand people passing through everyday, there is

         17  no way unless you keep on, enhance, like Councilman

         18  Gallagher alluded to, we need an enhancement to

         19  reinforce the services that are there.

         20                 I must say that you know I look in

         21  amazement that we're still sitting on the tarmac

         22  after twenty years because I go to Trenton, I go to

         23  Newark, New Jersey, they all have BIDs.  It is

         24  amazing that with this amount of people, and we are

         25  still now the downtown has a new phenomenon that the
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          2  whole downtown is getting an influx of a lot of new

          3  grocery stores.  The part of town to the southern

          4  area is almost becoming a giant grocery district.

          5  So there is no way that you can avoid the issue.  I

          6  understand the pain of some of the people that are

          7  in opposition.  But it's like Councilwomen Quinn

          8  alluded to, eloquently earlier, you turn a lot of

          9  skeptics that were, years ago, that did not have the

         10  benefit of seeing the 1,500 BIDs that are across

         11  north America today.  People are smart businessmen.

         12  Smart businessmen would not make losing

         13  propositions.  They are enhancements.  They are

         14  benefits to doing a BID and they have come around.

         15                 I was just at an International

         16  Downtown Association Annual meeting in Boston a few

         17  months ago.  Ireland and Europe and England, where

         18  they normally do not have BIDs, are sending people

         19  to learn from us.  How can we establish BIDs?  So I

         20  ask your indulgence, and I hope that you will

         21  support this worthwhile idea.           Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you Mr.

         23  Chen.  Ms. Wang.

         24                 MS. WANG: Good morning ladies and

         25  gentlemen, my name is Lisa Wang.  My family run a
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          2  business in Flushing.  People say that you cannot

          3  mix pleasure and business, but I have to because I'm

          4  not just a business owner in Flushing, I'm also a

          5  resident in Flushing.  I have such a great passion

          6  for Flushing.  I am so eager and so supportive of

          7  this action that has been taken to make Flushing a

          8  better place for me to run a business, and also for

          9  my daughter to live in and be proud of.  That's why

         10  I'm here today. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We appreciate

         12  that.  Mr. Fu.

         13                 MR. FU: Thank you, Chairman Weprin

         14  and all the City Councilmen.  My name is Fred Fu.  I

         15  am a President of Flushing Chinese Business

         16  Association, and we have several hundred members and

         17  associations founded since 1982.  It is 21 years

         18  now, and all 300 member most is in Flushing,

         19  downtown area.  And since the BID, since last

         20  October and we have two open public meeting in my

         21  office in Flushing Downtown.  At least one time, I

         22  remember both my good friend Leo Chung and the

         23  Chairlady, both in the meeting and about 20 or 30

         24  member joined the meeting and discussing.   And in

         25  the early February all 14 board member have a
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          2  meeting.  We have vote, we agree to support in favor

          3  of the BID in Flushing Downtown.

          4                 Myself have a travel agency since 10

          5  years ago in Flushing Downtown Main Street on tops,

          6  on the second floor of the Kentucky Fried Chicken.

          7  I have a contract signed my lease.  I am the tenant.

          8    I am not the owner.  I'm the tenant.  And the

          9  managements has shown all the tax increase portion

         10  the tenant should have paid 50 percent, share of

         11  this 50 percent.  That means that every tax

         12  increase, not only the owner paid, even the tenant

         13  should have paid.  I check my building should paid

         14  for this BID, should pay, why it's $7,500 for a

         15  year?  That come pay out to every day is $5.  We

         16  have three tenant including myself and one office is

         17  accountant, and the other one is Kentucky Fried

         18  Chicken.  So $5 each day and $2.50 for three

         19  tenants, and each tenant pay 80 cents so each tenant

         20  just pay 80 cents.  I want to save, every day work

         21  time save this Flushing Downtown.  That's my

         22  opinion.

         23                 I want to say something, in Flushing

         24  Downtown, sure its BID is Downtown, but some are

         25  member, even  they are not in the very beginning in
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          2  the Flushing Downtown, but they will like to pay

          3  something because they know, they see the future,

          4  because if a Flushing no future, it means Flushing

          5  business no future.  For example, Flushing mall is

          6  the side, in the west side is in the College Point

          7  and Prince Streets, 39th Avenue.  Supposing --- the

          8  beginning of October Flushing Mall is not in the BID

          9  area, but they agreed.   Some of the Muss developer

         10  was testifying right away and they are in the east.

         11  They are in the stand for the Casina (phonetic), but

         12  they want to pay because actually the most developer

         13  is Flushing Plaza and the Flushing Mall.  They have

         14  their own security.  They have their own people to

         15  clean the street. They don't need BID but they know,

         16  they would pay.  These two big companies would pay

         17  more than 10 percent, even 20 percent of the total

         18  the budget.  They say because they know, they want

         19  to pay to have this community to help everybody to

         20  save this Flushing Downtown because we know, we

         21  always see the future.  Like the gentleman who said

         22  before about the economics bad, we know that,

         23  economics bad.  But this is bad is only for one

         24  year, two years, three years.  The BID, we have

         25  tried to go for 20 years now.  I don't want to wait
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          2  for another 20 years.  I can wait for two or three

          3  years.  I cannot wait for another 20 years, so our

          4  Flushing Chinese Business Association is three

          5  hundred member, most is agreeing for the BID.  Thank

          6  you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you Mr. Fu.

          8  Mr. Chang.

          9                 MR. CHANG: Yes.  My name is Louis

         10  Chang.  I have a bakery store in Flushing also I

         11  have a small property in Flushing. I really support

         12  the BID because I see it compared to the other BIDs.

         13    The BID is good for the tenant and the landlord.

         14  I want to see more chain in Flushing and more

         15  resident in Flushing, and you know, I want Flushing

         16  more future.  That is why I support the BID. Thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: And last but not

         19  least, Mr. Markowitz.

         20                 MR. MARKOWITZ: Good morning, Mr.

         21  Chairman, members. I'm Stan Markowitz.  I'm Senior

         22  Vice President of Muss Development Company.  We are

         23  the owners through our operating affiliate Flushing

         24  Plaza Associates, 41- 61 Kissena Boulevard.  Perhaps

         25  the largest commercial building in Downtown Flushing
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          2  at 243,000 square feet.  With all the talk about

          3  property owners, I would point out that we are only

          4  one in the mix of the, what is it, 295 owners.  We

          5  are only one, but based upon assessed evaluation of

          6  the total properties within the district or based

          7  upon the budget that is projected for the district,

          8  our membership represents more than 10 percent.  So

          9  I think you know although we are not talking about

         10  weighted average here, I think it is important.  As

         11  responsible property owners we have long urged the

         12  establishment of an entity to look after some of

         13  these daily maintenance problems in Downtown

         14  Flushing.  You have my written statement, and I will

         15  just elaborate slightly.  Flushing Plaza is well

         16  maintained by our own very substantial staff.  It is

         17  plazas and sidewalks and gutters are swept clean

         18  every day.  Graffiti is removed from our property as

         19  soon as it appears.  But we believe in the creation

         20  of a BID for the good of all Downtown Flushing.

         21  Some of our largest tenants are Time Warner Cable of

         22  New York City who has their headquarters at Flushing

         23  Plaza.  HIP and VNS and Con Edison.  There are over

         24  1,000 employees who work in Flushing Plaza, and we

         25  are on the periphery of the district.  They walk
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          2  from the subway and the bus in the center core of

          3  the district to get to and from work everyday.  We

          4  think the health and well being of our own property

          5  as well as Downtown Flushing is very important to

          6  their happiness, and their safety, and their

          7  security, their ability to do business, and to do

          8  shopping on to and from work.  That is why we

          9  support this BID and we always have.

         10                      I urge you to give your

         11  unqualified support to the creation of the BID, and

         12  I thank you for the opportunity to hear from all of

         13  us today.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you Mr.

         15  Markowitz.  Do any of my colleagues have any

         16  questions?  Council Member Gallagher.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Thank you

         18  Mr. Chairman, I really don't have too many

         19  questions.  I know that there is another hearing

         20  going on today concerning the budget but I just

         21  wanted to thank everybody for testifying because I

         22  think that you gave some clarification.

         23  Clarification that I know I wanted to hear.  The

         24  previous individual who gave testimony, I think Mr.

         25  Jay Liu, not to be confused with our Council
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          2  colleague, John Liu, had brought up some points that

          3  concerned many people.  You clarified them.  You

          4  said that there was only three people who spoke in

          5  opposition at the Community Board.  How many people

          6  were present at that Community Board hearing?

          7                 MS. BIDERMAN: We had several hundred

          8  people at the meeting.  Only, I think it was, 40

          9  something that signed up.  I will furnish the copy

         10  of the minutes to the Chairman of the Finance

         11  Committee.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: I

         13  appreciate that because I know that you know hearing

         14  the statement that there was about a hundred people

         15  that testified in opposition would cause some

         16  concern, but having known that now three people,

         17  three individuals testified and here we are at the

         18  City Council having a hearing.  We have 7 here who

         19  are testifying in favor of it and one person who

         20  came out in opposition sometimes speak volume.  I

         21  think it also speaks volumes that the Chamber of

         22  Commerce is out here to support the creation of a

         23  Flushing BID.

         24                 Mr. Chang I just wanted to point out

         25  one thing that I appreciate you saying.  Is that
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          2  prior to this that you investigated and looked at

          3  other Business Improvement Districts and that you

          4  saw some of the benefits from other districts and

          5  you knew that that would be of assistance for you

          6  and for Flushing, so I will spare you any questions

          7  but I thank you very much for coming here and

          8  testifying before the Council today.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         10  Liu, do you have something to say?

         11                 Thank you all for coming.  Okay, this

         12  part of the hearing on the BID will be adjourned for

         13  at least thirty days.  We will probably pick this up

         14  again in August, but the thirty day period to file

         15  objections with the City Clerk will begin to run so

         16  people should make their voices heard.  The Finance

         17  Committee Hearing is now in recess.

         18                 (Hearing recessed at 11:00 p.m.)
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